ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 23, 2017
3:07 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss-Tonki ns, Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Vice Chair
Representative Chris Tuck

Representati ve Adam Wol

Representative Chris Birch

Represent ati ve DeLena Johnson

Representative Gary Knopp

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Andy Josephson (alternate)
Representati ve Chuck Kopp (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S)

Al aska Departnment of Public Safety, Conm ssioner

Walt Monegan - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Al aska Public O fices Conmm ssion

Robert diff - Anchorage
Adam Schwem ey - Anchor age

- CONFI RVATI ON('S) ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 175

"An Act ratifying an interstate conpact to elect the President
and Vice-President of the United States by national popul ar
vote; and making related changes to statutes applicable to the
selection by voters of electors for candidates for President and
Vice- President of the United States and to the duties of those
el ectors.™

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 23, 2017



HOUSE BI LL NO. 143
"An Act nam ng the Daniel R Fauske Building."

- MOVED HB 143 OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 13
"An Act prohibiting the expenditure of state or nmunicipal assets
to create a registry based on race or religion."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 175

SHORT TITLE: US PRESI DENT ELECT. COVPACT: POPULAR VOTE
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FANSLER

03/ 13/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 13/ 17 (H) STA, JUD

03/ 16/ 17 (H) STA AT 3:00 PM GRUENBERG 120
03/ 16/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 16/ 17 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 23/ 17 (H) STA AT 3:00 PM GRUENBERG 120

BILL: HB 143
SHORT TI TLE. NAM NG THE DANI EL R FAUSKE BUI LDI NG
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) CHENAULT

02/ 24/ 17 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 24/ 17 (H STA
03/ 23/ 17 (H) STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120

W TNESS REG STER

WALT MONEGAN, Commi ssi oner Designee

Departnment of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointed conm ssioner of the
Department of Public Safety.

ROBERT CLIFF, Governor's Appointee for Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssi on ( APQOC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Al aska
Public O fices Comm ssion (APQC).

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 23, 2017



ADAM SCHWEMLEY, Governor's Appointee for Al aska Public Ofices
Comm ssi on ( APQC)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Al aska
Public O fices Comm ssion (APCC).

REPRESENTATI VE ZACH FANSLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 175, as prinme sponsor.

JOHN KQzZA, Chair

Nat i onal Popul ar Vote

Los Altos, California

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
175.

BARRY DONNELLAN
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

ROBIN SM TH
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

Rl CHARD EMANUEL
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

PAM TESCHE
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

CARLA STACY
Kenai, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

BETH FREAD
Pal mer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

M KE COONS
Pal mer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

PAUL KENDALL
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 23, 2017



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

ALEX KOPLI N, Kenai Peninsul a Votes
Homer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

El LEEN BECKER
Hormer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

JANET GCEHRI NGER
Homer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

KESHA ETZW LER
Hormer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

BRANDY SUPER
Honmer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

MARI ANNE SCHLEGELM LCH
Hormer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

AMY BOLLENBACH
Hormer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

PAMVELA HALL
Hormer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

SARAH VANCE
Hormer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

| AN SM TH

Young Denocrats House District 30

Kenai, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

MALENA MARVI N

Pet ersburg, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 23, 2017



PATRI CK RACE
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

MARGO WARI NG
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

JUDY ANDREE, League of Wnen Voters (LW) of Al aska
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

BEN MUSE
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

ALAN DAVI S
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

KARLA HART
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

W LLI AM DEATON
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 175.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 143, as prine sponsor.

JERRY LAVI NE

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 143.
JOHN BI TTNEY

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 143.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:07: 59 PM

CHAIR JONATHAN KREI SS-TOWKINS called the House State Affairs
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3: 07 p. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 23, 2017



Representatives LeDoux, Tuck, Wol, Birch, Knopp, and Kreiss-
Tonkins were present at the call to order. Representati ve
Johnson arrived as the neeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG&( S)

3:09:18 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS announced that the first order of business
woul d be confirmation hearings.

Commi ssi oner, Departnment of Public Safety

3:09: 53 PM

WALT MONEGAN, Comm ssioner Designee, Departnent of Public Safety
(DPS), stated that he was not born in Al aska, but his nother's
side of the famly was. He relayed that he is part Tlingit,
part Yupik, and part Irish. He said that he spent a good deal
of his youth near Bethel in a place called Nyac, which is the
pl ace he calls "hone." He related that after he left mlitary
service in 1971, he noved back to Bethel and served as a nedic
and fire fighter for the Bethel Volunteer Fire Departnent
( BVFD) . He nentioned that two acquai ntances, who were troopers
under the Division of Alaska State Troopers (AST), asked himto
consider joining AST, since he had recently served in the U S
Mari ne Corp. He said that at the tine, he disregarded the
suggesti on. He stated that these troopers had "planted the
seed," and several years later after he had married, and a baby
was on the way, he responded to a City of Anchorage patrol man
openi ng.

COWM SSI ONER MONEGAN said that he joined the Anchorage Police
Departnent (APD) in January of 1974. He remained with APD for
close to 34 years before retiring; the last five and a half
years he served as chief of police. He said that he was
commi ssioner of DPS under [forner] Governor Sarah Palin, and
since then, he has worked at the school district, at the non-
profit Alaska Native Justice Center (ANJC), and as acting
commi ssioner of the Departnent of Corrections (DOC) for Governor
Bill Walker. He stated that he was invited to apply for the
position of conmm ssioner of DPS. He nentioned that he enjoys
the work, loves the state and the people, and |oves the people
wi th whom he works.

3:12:54 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 23, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked Comnm ssioner Monegan to name the top
t hree chal | enges for DPS.

COWMM SSI ONER MONEGAN replied that the biggest challenge for DPS
is the sane as for many |aw enforcenent agencies across the
country: finding good qualified individuals to be police
officers and state troopers and retaining them He mai nt ai ned
there is conpetition for police and troopers; nany troopers
depart AST to join other agencies, such as APD or the King
County Sheriff's Ofice (KCSO, wth defined benefit packages.
He maintained that DPS needs to denonstrate to the current and
new troopers that they are appreciated and val ued.

COWM SSI ONER MONEGAN stated that Al aska currently has an opioid

epidenmic and constituents are tired of being victimzed. He
mai ntai ned that staff is trying to address that problemw th the
hel p of partners - local police and federal agencies.

3:15: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked if the causation for the retention
problemin Alaska is the same as the causation nationally.

COWM SSI ONER MONEGAN answered that retention is a national issue
and finding individuals who are worthy of the public trust is a
tough j ob. He nmmintained that there are several factors
contributing to the retention problem He said that one factor
is economc, and another is what he refers to as the "Ferguson”
factor [the events surrounding and resulting from the fatal
police shooting of a black teenager in Ferguson, Mssouri],
which has reflected poorly on sonme officers. He asserted that
officers nust denonstrate that they are trustworthy and wll
defend the public. He stated his belief that "as tinme goes by
: we're going to get that pendulum to swing our way again,"
and until that tine, officers nust prepare for it and do their
j obs as professionally as they can.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL referred to previous legislative committee
di scussions about Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSGs) and
asked Conmi ssioner Monegan for his assessnent of and possible
solution for recruiting and retaining VPSCs.

COM SSI ONER MONEGAN said that DPS will be working with the
contractors, which are the nine non-profits and Northwest Arctic
Bor ough, who enploy the VPSGCs. He stated that the VPSO program
has been in existence for 40 years and has gone through many
changes. He maintained that DPS is noving VPSGs closer and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 23, 2017



closer to the role of troopers. Since VPSCs are called upon to
intervene in threatening situations, DPS has taken steps to
better prepare them such as having them attend the trooper
acadeny with troopers to afford them the best training DPS can
give them He maintained that DPS needs to work wth
contractors to conme up with a better idea, and he has proposed
to the governor that in lieu of a better idea, VPSOs should be
made state enpl oyees. He said that he hopes that will address
the turnover problem enhance canaraderie, and foster the
respect that they deserve.

3:19:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP, citing Comm ssioner Monegan's experience
as conm ssioner designee since June [2016], asked if there is
opportunity to use the troopers under the Division of Al aska
Wldlife Troopers (AW) in other positions during their
“downtinme."

COWM SSI ONER  MONEGAN responded that the troopers under AW
attend the sane acadeny as those under AST, because they are
al so state troopers. Their primary duties are wildlife and
resource protection. However, if they are the only avail able
trooper to respond to a donestic violence situation, a drunk
driving situation, or an accident, they will respond. He said
that their duties include the duties of state troopers, and sone
have been in both positions in their careers. He added that
there is nutual respect between the two groups of troopers; they
partner with each other as needed; and they perform the duties
that they are called upon to perform as needed.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked if there is downtine for the troopers
under AWI maeki ng them avail able as a resource for rural duty.

COMWM SSI ONER  MONEGAN replied that DPS does send wldlife
troopers out to posts, and if there is a call for service
regarding crimnal activity not related to wldlife and the

wildlife trooper is the only trooper, he/she wll respond. He
mai ntained that wildlife troopers are "dual - purposed” and there
is no downtine. He stated that because AW owns all the

aircraft and nost of DPS' s mmjor vessels, it facilitates many of
t he search and rescues across the state.

[ The confirmation of Conmm ssioner Mnegan as Conm ssioner of the

Departnent of Public Safety was advanced to the joint session of
t he House and Senate for consideration.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 23, 2017



Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion

3:24: 09 PM

ROBERT CLIFF, Governor's Appointee for Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), relayed that he was an adm nistrator for the
Kuspuk School District (KSD) in Aniak for his entire career and
nmoved to Anchorage when he retired. He nmentioned that his
experience living in Aniak was very rewarding, and he w shes to
"pay back" to the state for what he has benefitted. He said he
has run for office three tines, and his experiences with APCC
have always been positive. He nmentioned that APOC was very
hel pful to him as a candi date. He stated that he w shes to
serve on APOC because of his good opinion of the comm ssion and
because he believes in their mssion of fostering transparency
and fairness in relation to candidates and |obbyists. He
expressed his belief that he would be inpartial and do a good
j ob on the conm ssion.

3:27:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked M. diff if his wife ran for
of fice.

MR. CLI FF responded that his wife ran for governor.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that M. diff was seeking the
Li bertarian seat of APOC, and she asked what is neant by "the
Li bertarian seat."

MR. CLIFF expressed his belief that Libertarians are needed on
APCC, since they do not always agree wth Denocrats or
Republ i cans. He opined that Libertarians would bring "bal ance"
to the conmm ssion. He stated that his only agenda in seeking a
seat on APOC is to prove that Libertarians are reasonabl e,
capabl e, and can work with both Denocrats and Republi cans.

3:28:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if he, as a Libertarian, would view
limts on canpaign noney as being contrary to the Libertarian
phi | osophy. She asked how he would reconcile the Libertarian
phi | osophy with his APOC m ssi on.

MR. CLIFF responded that he believes that the public has the

right to know how much [candi dates] are spending and the source
of that noney. He said at that point, it is up to the voters to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 23, 2017



decide if they want to support that candi date. He stated that
the real issue is that transparency increases voter confidence
that "the gane's not rigged."” He asserted that he believes
people should be able to spend their noney as they w sh;
however, he does not want to see a corporation, wunion, or
simlar entity "buying an election.” He asserted that
libertarianismis all about the individual and his/her rights.

[ The confirmation of M. diff as appointee for Al aska Public
O fices Comm ssion was advanced to the joint session of the
House and Senate for consideration.]

3:31: 40 PM

ADAM SCHWEMLEY, Governor's Appointee for Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APCC), relayed that he is a lifelong Al askan and has
a background in public service through his work wth fire
departnments, EMS services, and clinics. He said he has started
a famly and currently works in an orthopedic <clinic 1in
Anchor age. He maintained that he is seeking the position on
APCC to continue to serve the comunity.

3:32:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked M. Schweml ey what his experience was
with APOCC and why he is interested in the position.

MR. SCHWEMLEY stated that he was not famliar with APOC prior to
the chair of the Alaska Libertarian Party (ALP) 1|ooking for

i nterested candi dates. He said that although he does not have
political experience, he has been interested in politics since
m ddl e school . He asserted that APOC offers an invaluable

service to the comunity by pronoting financial transparency and
i nform ng the public.

[ The confirmation of M. Schwemley as appointee for Al aska
Public O fices Comm ssion was advanced to the joint session of
t he House and Senate for consideration.]

HB 175-US PRESI DENT ELECT. COVPACT: POPULAR VOTE

3:34:57 PM
CHAI R KREI SS-TOWI NS announced that the next order of business

would be HOUSE BILL NO 175, "An Act ratifying an interstate
conpact to elect the President and Vice-President of the United

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 23, 2017



States by national popular vote; and making related changes to
statutes applicable to the selection by voters of electors for
candi dates for President and Vice-President of the United States
and to the duties of those electors.”

3:35: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ZACH FANSLER, Al aska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor of HB 175, expressed his belief that HB 175, the

Nat i onal Popul ar Vote bill, offers an opportunity for discussion
on the meaning of a vote and on having one's vote count. He
stated that HB 175 would give Alaska nore attention on the
national level, not just regarding nedia coverage [in a
political canpaign] but on a canpaign' s organization and focus
on issues relevant to Al aska. He maintained that National

Popul ar Vote would increase the attention paid to all 50 states
rather than just the "sw ng" states. He explained that HB 175
woul d preserve Alaska's right to determine how its electoral
votes are allocated, and Al aska could withdraw from the [U. S.
Presidential Election Conpact] at any tine. He asserted that
[ Nati onal Popular Vote] wuld be a good way to increase
investment in the state and to have Al aska's issues be heard.
He asserted that it is inportant for a "sitting" President to
continue to be engaged with Al aska, and National Popular Vote
woul d encour age that.

3:40: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked if the United States was the only
country with a denocracy using the Electoral College.

REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER replied that he is not aware of another
country that does so but would provide that information.

3:40: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP opined that National Popular Vote would do
exactly the opposite of "making our voices heard.”" He expressed
his belief that Al aska's del egates should vote according to the
vote of the mmjority of the state and not according to the
Nat i onal Popular Vote Interstate Conpact ("the conpact”). He
asserted that he has issues with the concept of National Popul ar
Vote and asked how Alaska's voices wuld be heard [under
Nati onal Popul ar Vote].

REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER expressed his belief that wnning the
presidential election by popular vote introduces a b50-state

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 23, 2017



canpai gn as opposed to a 12-state, 8-state, or 4-state canpaign
as currently occurs. He maintained that under this system a
presidential candidate would talk to small states about issues
important to them because he/she would need to "cobble
together” the small states to achieve the popular vote najority.
He added that this system would also increase voter turnout,
which is typically very low He stated that a voter who is not
aligned politically with the majority of his/her state may fee

as if his/her vote does not count. He asserted that wth
Nati onal Popular Vote, all voters are "on a level playing
field," and each vote would matter a great deal

3:44:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked for an explanation of the conpact and
the threshold needed to make it "functional."

REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER responded that states have already joined
the pact, and if HB 175 were passed, Al aska would join the pact.
He said that the pact takes effect when there are 270 el ectora
votes represented by the states in the pact. He conjectured
that once enough states have signed on to the pact to break the
270-el ectoral vote threshold, there will be nonmentum for the
other states to join. He conceded that sone states nmay wish to
preserve the system as is. He maintained that in either case,
it is an inportant discussion.

3:46: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH stated that his constituents have indicated
to him that National Popular Vote is bad for Al aska. He opi ned
that it is bad for Alaska because under National Popular Vote
the current President would not have been elected, which would
have been bad for Al aska. He enphasized the inportance of
states' rights and every state having the sane nunber of U S
Senators irrespective of population. He suggested that Al aska
would be "lost in the noise" when included with large states
such as California, New York, Florida, and Texas. He asserted
that Al aska has three electoral votes under a "w nner-take-all"
system which makes Al aska a part of the election process under
an established constitutional process.

REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER responded that National Popular Vote in
no way affects representation in Congress or allocation of U S
Senat or s. He relayed that he was hesitant to introduce HB 175,
because he did not want it to be viewed as a partisan bill. He
asserted that HB 175 was not intended to be a response to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 23, 2017



recent presidential election. He said that HB 175 has been
i ntroduced and heard nultiple times; there is no intent to add
to the current "charged" political climte through the proposed
| egi sl ation. He asserted that the positive aspect of the
conpact is that it does allow Alaska to retain its rights as a
state; Alaska may determ ne whether to join the conpact and may
wi thdraw from the conpact |ater upon deciding that it is not
best for Al aska.

3:51:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked why states would join a conpact to
change the electoral process rather than changing the process
t hrough an anmendnent to the U. S. Constitution.

REPRESENTATI VE ~ FANSLER  agreed that there could be a
constitutional anendnent to change the electoral pr ocess;
however, it would be difficult and may turn out to be
undesi rabl e. He mamintained that the proposed |egislation
provides Alaska the flexibility to revert to the El ectoral
College system if it w shes, wthout going through the |engthy
repeal process.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if there have been any conpacts that
effectively r epeal ed a provi si on of t he u. S
Constitution and if there are any legal opinions to support
repealing a provision of the U S. Constitution in this way.

3:54:41 PM

JOHN KQOZA, Chair, National Popular Vote, stated that the U S
Constitution does not contain the wnner-take-all rule, but in
Article Il, gives the state the exclusive power to decide how to
award its electoral votes. He relayed that the Constitutiona
Convention never debated the wi nner-take-all rule that exists in
Al aska and 47 other states. He said only three states used the
rule in the first presidential election in 1789, and all three
repealed it by 1800. He nentioned that the rule becane
promnent by 1880 - long after the U S  Constitution was
witten, and the Founding Fathers had died. He stated that the
method by which a state awards its electoral votes can be
changed wi thout a constitutional amendnent for the sinple reason
that all the states that currently have the w nner-take-all rule
adopted it wthout a federal constitutional anendnment.

3:56:16 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 23, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed her belief that the Founding
Fat hers considered this sane issue when they stated that a pure
denocracy is dangerous, and the United States was to be a
representational republic. She asked Representative Fansler,
"How do you think it's different now than what our Founding
Fat hers envi si oned?"

REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER st ated hi s bel i ef t hat t he
representational form of governnment cited by the Founding
Fathers refers to the way the U S. Congress is configured. He
of fered that when the Founding Fathers spoke in opposition to a
pure denocracy, they were referring to their opposition to a
vote taken on every issue and not to the Electoral Coll ege. He
mai nt ai ned that the nost dramatic changes since the tine of the
Foundi ng Fat hers have been the ease of travel and comruni cati on.
He opined that recognition of the limtations of the tinmes was
part of the reason for the Electoral College. He relayed that
the electoral system has changed over tine; it is an evolving
system and National Popular Vote represents another step in
that evol ution. He asserted that there are many ways the
el ectoral system could evolve; currently not all states follow
the winner-take-all rule; and the beauty of the system is that
it allows the wide latitude for state power.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed her belief that the statenent
of the Founding Fathers, which she <cited, speaks to the
Electoral College as a way of equalizing the vote between a
sparsely populated state and a heavily populated state. She
opi ned that National Popular Vote would be terrible for Al aska
and goes agai nst the idea of equal representation.

4:00: 32 PM
CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS opened public testinony on HB 175.
4:01: 00 PM

BARRY DONNELLAN testified that he supports the Electoral
Coll ege, and he believes the Electoral College was originally

conceived to give states of small population a say in the
el ection of the President. He nentioned that the four nost
popul ous states - New York, California, Texas, and Florida -
could control the outcone of the election, and Al aska woul d have
no "practical say in the matter." He offered that the El ectoral
Coll ege provides a "safety valve" against people of the United
States "doing sonething really stupid,” such as electing a

charismatic candidate promsing a mllion dollars to everyone.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 23, 2017



He mamintained that in that case, the Electoral College could
overrule the vote. He opined that the proposed |egislation
woul d emascul ate this safety valve. He stated his belief that
HB 175 is a bad idea, and if it passes, Al aska should save noney
and opt out of federal elections.

4:03:19 PM

ROBIN SMTH testified that Janes Madison acknow edged that
al though the election of the President and Vice President by

popul ar vote would be ideal, it would be difficult to get a
consensus on the proposal given the preval ence of slavery in the
Sout h. She relayed that the Electoral College was created

partly to resolve the problem of counting slaves in the
popul ation of a state. She opined that the Electoral College is
an archaic system when the U S. educates and encourages
denocracy in other countries, it never recommends the creation
of an electoral college. She asserted that just as the United
States has "grown" to enbrace the logic that all races and wonen
have a right to vote, it is tine to end the Electoral College
process.

M5. SM TH nentioned that a 2007 poll found that 72 percent of
Ameri cans support replacing the Electoral College with a "direct
el ection": 78 percent of Denocrats; 60 percent of Republicans;
and 73 percent of independent voters. She said that @Gllop
polls dating back to 1944 have shown that a consistent nmgjority
of the public supports a direct vote; however, support decreased
significantly in the poll conducted a few weeks after the 2016
el ecti on. She attested that these results should be ignored
because it had becone a partisan issue. She said that history
tells us that Americans want [a direct vote].

M5. SMTH stated that [a popular vote] equalizes voting power.
She nmaintained that she resents that the votes of sonme people
count nore than her vote. She said that currently only two
states have their Electoral College cast votes proportionally,
and Alaska is not one of them She attested that her vote is
not inportant, because she is in the mnority; because the

Republ i can presidential candidate will get Alaska's vote, she
has no reason to vote. She maintained that [a popul ar vote]
would increase voter participation. She encouraged the

committee to support HB 175.

4:06: 03 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 23, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP nentioned that M. Snmith spoke to her
support of the popular vote but not to joining the conpact as
prescribed in HB 175. He suggested that in the event of Al aska
joining the conpact, Ms. Smith's voice still would not be heard,
and Al aska would be giving up its rights. He nmaintained that
the proposed legislation would not attain the popular vote that
she supports.

M5. SM TH said that she disagrees. She offered that since she
is a Denocrat in a Republican state, her vote currently does not
count . She suggested that the concept behind the proposed
legislation is not just for Alaska to join the conmpact but to
get all the states to join the conpact, which would be easier
than anending the U S. Constitution.

4:08:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX gave the following scenario: Al aska
joined the conpact; the popular vote went for the Republican
[presidential] candidate; that candidate got at |east 270
el ectoral votes; and M. Smith voted for the Denocratic
candi dat e. She said, "I don't wunderstand why you would feel
i ke your vote would count then."

M5. SMTH stated that the goal is for all states to join the
conpact, and as a result, whonever got the popular vote would be
el ected President. She said that her vote would be counted in
as far as the Electoral College vote would reflect the popul ar
vot e.

4:09: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL expressed his belief that when HB 175 was
presented, it was not explained thoroughly enough for the public
to understand what the conpact does and how it, in effect,
beconmes a de facto popul ar vote. He suggested that sone people
feel that their votes do not count because currently the popul ar
vote is irrelevant and does not determ ne who becones President.
The President is determ ned by who get the nost electoral votes.
He said that if enough states join the conpact so that the
conbi ned el ectoral votes equal 270 or nore, then all the states
in the conpact would cast their electoral votes for the

candidate w nning the popular vote. The candidate would be
el ected by electoral votes, but those votes would be "triggered"
by the popular vote. He asserted that for M. Smth, the

conpact would allow her vote to be counted through the results
of the popul ar vote. He nentioned that until the 270-el ectora

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 23, 2017



vote threshold is reached through states joining the conpact
t he conpact is neaningl ess.

4:12:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Bl RCH commented that under the Electoral Coll ege,
all votes are counted, and they do count.

4:12: 57 PM

RI CHARD EMANUEL testified that he understands that the El ectoral
College gives the small states a mnmarginal advantage over
representation strictly by population. He said that the role of
the Electoral College is to vote for "wse electors" to provide
a "safety valve" against an unwi se choice by the voters. He
asserted that the Electoral College does not function this way.
He stated that currently 24 states place limts on the ability
of electors to vote their consciences; they are threatened with
fines or crimnal penalties if they vote against the party that
put them on the ballot. He expressed his belief that the
"safety val ve" function does not work anynore.

MR EMANUEL said that it is wundeniable that presidentia
el ections currently focus on swing states at the expense of nost

Aner i cans. He nentioned that he has never seen a presidential
candi date canpaign in Al aska except for a stop in Anchorage or
Juneau to claim that he/she canpaigned in all 50 states. He
attested that even the larger states tend to be ignored if they
are solidly "red" or solidly "blue." He stated that under the
proposed | egislation, every vote will be equal no matter where a
person |ives. He asserted that his vote, cast in Alaska, would
count the sane as a vote cast in Florida, Ohio, Ilowa, or
Cali fornia.

MR. EMANUAL attested that every other election in Anerica is
determined by popular vote; myors, assenbly nenbers, the
governor, and legislators are all elected by popular vote. He
asked, "Why should our President be elected by any other neans?
Wat's wong wth denocracy? Way shouldn't our President be
el ected by a purely denocratic system that counts every person's
vote as equal to every other person's, regardless of where they
[ive?"

MR. EMANUAL asserted that the proposed |egislation does not

represent a red or blue issue. He said if sone individual |ives
in a solidly red state, such as Alaska, or in a solidly blue
state, such as California, that individual will be given short

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 23, 2017



shrift by presidential canpaigns. He nentioned that the
attention given to California - a blue state - was
overwhel m ngly for fundrai sing. He maintained that the vote of
a "red" voter in California did not count. Al [California's]
electors cast their votes for a candidate other than the one
those red voters supported. He asserted that an Al askan who
supports a Republican [presidential] candidate nmay feel that the
El ectoral College functions in his/her favor, but he attested
that politics runs in cycles and past performance is not a
guarantee for future results. He clainmed that one should not
oppose HB 175 based on the politics of today.

4:16: 35 PM

PAM TESCHE testified that HB 175 is good for Al askans and
joining a conpact with other states would be good for the
country. She stated that the Electoral College was introduced
because of equity issues. She added that she now believes that
with better transportation and comunication of ideas, the
equity is now skewed, and the country should nove to a "higher
| evel of experiencing our elections.” She asserted that she
woul d i ke to see Al aska conpete for votes on an honest |evel.

4:19:26 PM

CARLA STACY testified that she supports Alaska joining the
Nat i onal Popul ar Vote conpact. She said that there are ten
other states that have joined the conpact for a conbined total
of 165 electoral votes. She expressed her belief that the
intent of the conpact is geared toward one person, one vote.
She stated that Janes Madison, a Founding Father of the U S
Constitution, said that the people at large were the fittest to
choose an executive and that he was never in favor of the
El ectoral Coll ege. She attested that the Electoral College
system was a conpromse to give the slave-owning states nore
i nfluence by counting a slave as three-fifths of a person in the

popul ati on count. She said, "The Electoral College really did
work for them but it doesn't work for us anynore.” She
mai ntai ned that the 200,000 registered voters of that day were
very different fromthe 200 mllion voters of today.

M5. STACY stated that Al exander Ham Iton wote in The Federali st
Papers that the U S. Constitution is designed to ensure the
of fice of President never falls to the ot of any man who is not
em nently endowed with the requisite qualifications. She opined
that the Electoral College failed the country in [the election
of] 2016 and four previous tines. She nmaintained that the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 23, 2017



popul ar vote should dictate who wll be President wth one
person, one vote.

4:21:56 PM

BETH FREAD testified that she believes that the Electoral
College was formed so that the votes of small states wll be
count ed. She stated that she does not support Al aska joining
the ~conpact or elimnating the Electoral Col | ege. She
mai nt ai ned that the present system gives Al aska power and a real
voi ce. She added that she does not believe that her vote would
count nore in a popular vote system She urged the conmittee
not to support HB 175.

4:25: 08 PM

M KE COONS testified that the "interstate conpact” that would be
ratified by HB 175 is in violation of Article I, Section 10,
Clause 3 of the U S. Constitution. He relayed that this clause
states in part, "No state shall, wthout the consent of
Congress, enter into any agreenent or conpact with any other
state.” He stated that he knows the Denocratic Party is not

above disregarding the law and believes that the (indisc.) in
the living, breathing [U S.] Constitution. He added that even
if this terrible piece of legislation was to pass, the US.
Congress would not allow the result [ of the proposed
| egi sl ation] because of Article |, Section 10,  ause 3. He
asserted that the Electoral College is in the Twelfth Amendnent
of the U S Constitution, and although the Denocrats like to
violate the U S. Constitution as it suits them to change the
Twel fth Amendnment does still require the use of Article V of the
U.S. Constitution, which the proposed legislation clearly does
not. He said [changing the U S. Constitution] would require the
Denocrati c nenbers who supported the change to persuade the U S
Congress to pass an anendnment and to persuade 38 individual
states to ratify it. He opined that the Denocratic Party does
not believe it nust follow the U S. Constitution or the |[aw,
(indisc.) by the many violations of law (indisc.) the Denocratic
Party and its anarchist supporters have perforned since
President Donald Trunmp was |lawfully elected, within the confines
of the U S. Constitution. He urged commttee nmenbers to uphold
their oaths of office and vote "no" on HB 175.

4:28:42 PM

PAUL KENDALL testified that due to the potential for fraud [in
the presidential election], [a state] nust be vigilant. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 23, 2017



suggested that Alaska have "credit card-like" voting, which
would be as sinple as buying sonething in a store. He
mai nt ai ned that because the voter fraud potential for the 2018
el ection is huge, each voter will need to be validated. He
expressed his belief that all political candidates should sign
affidavits of "promse and performances." He suggested that
each candi date answer 100 questions from the comunity so that
the public can discern who is |lying. He nmaintained that
Governor Bill Wl ker betrayed Al askans after his el ection. M .
Kendal | shared concerns related to various other issues.

4:31:53 PM

ALEX KOPLI N, Kenai Peninsula Votes, testified that he represents
Kenai Peninsula Votes, a non-partisan organization that strives
to increase voter participation. He maintained that HB 175
woul d support the idea that Al askans' votes do count in nationa
el ections and woul d encourage nore people to vote. He asserted
that the proposed |egislation would allow candidates to be nore
transparent and to becone nore famliar with all 50 states and
their issues. He opined that the National Popul ar Vote novenent
in Alaska is a "positive direction" for the state.

4:32:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked M. Koplin if he was aware that the
objective of HB 175 is for Alaska to cast its electoral votes
according to the [national] popul ar vote.

MR. KOPLIN answered that he is aware of that but believes that
Al aska has many di senfranchi sed voters, who are not energized to
vot e. He nmentioned that Al aska has good voter turnout - about
60 percent voted in the last election. He maintained that nore
voters are needed to nake the el ection process effective.

REPRESENTATI VE Bl RCH asked M. Koplin if he read HB 175.

MR. KOPLI N responded yes. He said he has | ooked at the proposed
| egi sl ation, the sectional analysis, and the |egal opinion. He
asserted that there would be no extra cost to the state. He
opined that there is wvalidity in the argunments presented
regarding Article | of the US. Constitution, but he maintained
that the electoral systemis antiquated, and nore people need to
be involved in the election process. He said that regardl ess of
partisan politics, he supports legislation that encourages nore
voter participation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 23, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH stated that he is troubled by a conpact in
which all the state's electoral votes are awarded to the
presidential candidate who wins the popular vote nationally. He
asserted that the popular vote in Al aska could be overwhel m ngly
for another candi date. He asked if that scenario concerned M.
Kopl i n.

MR. KOPLIN asserted that he is nore in favor of a constitutiona
amendnent . He offered that using the popular vote to determ ne
the President and the Vice President would be a significant
stride forward. He added that he didn't know if the conpact
woul d acconplish that but believes that it is "leaning toward
that direction.”

4:36:38 PM

El LEEN BECKER testified that she believes enacting HB 175 for a
trial period would create a ness. She expressed her belief that

under the proposed legislation, Alaska would give up all its
sovereign rights. She maintained that the election process is a
"very involved statewi de activity.” She stated that [ten states

and the District of Colunbia] have joined the conpact,
representing a total of 165 electoral votes. She asserted that
as nore people learn about this conpact, they will realize the
mess that it wll create nationw de. She offered that severa
popul ous states would control the election and Al aska would be
"not hi ng. " She stated that Alaska needs to "keep" its three
[electoral] votes in tact; the National Popular Vote is
unneeded; and it is a nationwi de effort supported by Denocratic
| egi sl atures. She said that the Electoral College has worked
for over two [centuries] and will continue to do so. She opined
that this effort is notivated by Denbcrats' hatred for President
Donal d Trunp.

4:39: 09 PM

JANET GCEHRI NGER testified that the Founding Fathers established
the U S. Constitution and set the guidelines for the governance
of the country for the benefit of all Anmericans. She stated
that the guidelines of the Electoral College ensure fair
el ections. She relayed that she is against the National Popul ar
Vot e. She maintained that it is an effort by Denbcrats to wn
the election through the popular vote, since |large areas of the
country are liberal. She said that she is a conservative; she
does not want what I|iberals want; and through the Electoral
Coll ege, the country got what it needed, which was President
Donal d Trunp. She urged the conmttee not to pass HB 175.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 23, 2017



4:40: 35 PM

KESHA ETZWLER testified that she vehenently opposes HB 175.
She stated, "The Electoral College has been woven into the
fabric of this country for a reason, and our votes do count."
She nmmintained that the country's forefathers designed the
el ection process to ensure that certain states, populations, and
policies don't dictate to the rest of the country. She asserted
that HB 175 is a "knee jerk" reaction to an outcone of an
el ection that dissatisfied sone people. She nmaintained that
initially electors were harassed to cast their votes for the
popul ar vote, and now conpacts are being made instead of "doing
the work" it takes to amend the U. S. Constitution.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKINS nentioned that he introduced |egislation
identical to HB 175 last year, which was before the 2016
el ecti on. He suggested that there may be some notivation for
the proposed |I|egislation independent of the outcone of the
recent election.

4:42: 08 PM

BRANDY SUPER testified that she is opposed to HB 175. She
mai ntai ned that the idea that Al askan voices would be heard by

changing the election process is a fallacy. She asserted that
under National Popular Vote, the small, rural states such as
Pennsyl vani a and Al aska would "l ose their voices" and the |arger
states such as Hawaii, California, and New York would have

"bi gger" voices. She stated that she is disappointed that HB
175 was i ntroduced.

4:43: 31 PM
MARI ANNE SCHLEGELM LCH expressed her belief that the proposed

| egislation represents a partisan issue being spearheaded by the
losing party in the last presidential election. She stated that

she opposes all attenpts to alter or bypass the US.
Constitution, including the attenpt to "work around the
El ectoral College," which has served the country well for 200
years. She opined that the popular vote is subject to

mani pul ati on and corrupt intervention. She expressed her belief
that HB 175 is intended to bypass "our wsely witten" U S
Constitution and should not be considered. She concl uded t hat
Al aska should not join the conpact.

4:44: 31 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 23, 2017



AMY BOLLENBACH testified that the first election in which she
voted was the [1960] election between Richard N xon and John F.
Kennedy. She stated that there was electoral fraud in Chicago
in that election. She nmentioned that she had voted for N xon,
and she was bothered by the disagreenent between the popul ar

vote and the Electoral College vote. She stated that in every
civil governnent election besides the federal election, the
maj ority w ns. She said that when she taught parlianmentary

procedure to seventh graders, her students would not have
accepted it if she had told them that only two or three of the

best students would be allowed to vote. She relayed that she
supports HB 175, and the purpose of the proposed legislation is
to allow the popular vote of the nation to decide who will be
Presi dent.
4:47:13 PM

PAMELA HALL testified that she is opposed to HB 175. She stated
that without the Electoral College, Al askan voters would not be
counted. She asserted that the big popul ation states shoul d not
elect the President, and Alaska would lose its "voice." She
mai ntai ned that currently there is a great deal of voter fraud,
and Alaska has nothing in comon with the states that have

j oined the conpact. She stated that she has no idea "why we
woul d give up our vote and |let them be deciding these things for
us." She opined that the Alaska politicians need to "get back

to doing the business of this state and quit worrying about what
i s happening in California, New York, et cetera.”

4. 48: 25 PM

SARAH VANCE testified that she is opposed to HB 175 because it
is unconstitutional and because it is "mred in confusion.” She
mai ntained that it is not "good governnent"” to pass a bill that
is unclear on how it would be executed. She expressed her
belief that Al aska needs to stand on its own, it does have a
voice, and its voice counts. She said she supports a nore
accountable nedia - one that announces the wnner of the

presidential election after Al aska voters cast their votes. She
mai ntai ned that investors in Al aska are |ooking for stability,
and although it was said that HB 175 proposes flexibility, she
mai ntained it would create instability. She said that the
ability of Alaska to withdraw fromthe conpact at any tine would
create confusion with the voters and would denonstrate that
Al aska is "double-m nded" in governnent and state operations.
She asserted that would be a bad nessage for investors who are

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 23, 2017



| ooking to do business in Al aska. She opined that the conpact
would not give Alaska nore attention during the presidential
canpai gn; Al aska would be grouped with other states and lose its
voi ce. She asserted that Alaska currently is "noticed" and has
a voi ce.

4:50: 28 PM

| AN SM TH, Young Denocrats House District 30, testified that
many people conclude that the current electoral system is good
because it benefits them now. He expressed his belief that "all
nmen are created equal,” and an Al askan should not have three
times as nmuch voting power as a Californian.

4:51: 53 PM

MALENA MARVIN testified that the National Popular Vote nobvenent
is a bipartisan novenent. She nmentioned that Newt G ngrich was
one of the original supporters of the concept, and he said,
"America would be better served with a presidential election
process that treated all citizens across the country equally.

The National Popular Vote bill acconmplishes this in a manner
consistent with the [U S.] Constitution and with our fundanental
denocratic principles.” She stated that she agrees with his
statenment; she is a patriot who |oves and believes in Anerica;
and she believes in a one-person, one-vote denocracy. She
mai ntai ned that the public needs to separate the process from
their party affiliation. She relayed that President Donald

Trunp is on record as supporting National Popular Vote, and in
2012, he said that the Electoral College is a disaster for
denocracy. She related that when asked about this after the
el ection, he said, "I'mnot going to change ny mnd just because
| won," and he added that he thinks that the current system
gives the Anmerican voters the inpression that the system is
rigged, which is not good for anyone.

M5. MARVIN relayed that spending time [in the lower 48] for
nmedi cal reasons this winter caused her to think about her vote
being worth less if she noved from Al aska for any reason. She
mai ntained it would not be right. She noted that the National
Popul ar Vote novenment was not started in response to any
presidential election but was started quite sone tine ago. She
added that [ten states and the District of Colunbia] have passed
Nati onal Popular Vote |egislation, including four small states,
representing 165 electoral votes or 61 percent of the nunber
required for winning the election. She expressed her belief
that this total will be achieved, and Al aska could choose to be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 23, 2017



a part of the novenent or "left out in the cold." She stated
that she supports HB 175, and she supports candi dates
canpaigning in all 50 states.

4:55:19 PM

PATRICK RACE reiterated that President Trunp has opposed the
El ectoral Col | ege. M. Race encouraged the enthusiastic
supporters of the President to follow the |lead of the President
on this issue. M. Race explained that the electoral vote of a
state reflects the popular vote; however, an Electoral College
nmenber can "follow his conscience" and vote differently than the

popul ar vote. He relayed an incident regarding an Electoral
Coll ege nenber in Colorado named M chael Baca: M. Baca
organi zed a group of "Hamlton electors”" to find a "conprom se
candidate.” He was obligated to vote for presidential candidate

Hillary dinton because she won the popular vote in Colorado,
but he cast his electoral vote for presidential candidate John
Kasi ch. M. Baca consequently was rempoved from the Col orado
El ectoral College; his vote was rescinded; and he was replaced
by soneone who would vote for Hillary dinton. M. Race opined
that the systemis broken and needs to be addressed. He stated
his belief that the El ectoral Coll ege has many problens, sone of
whi ch have been cited in the hearing.

MR. RACE mmintained that the Electoral College was not created
to overcone the rural urban divide, as has been stated, because
at that tinme in history, "rural" and "urban" were not clear
concepts; New York City had 25,000 people. He declared that the
proposed | egislation does not represent a new, partisan effort,
since National Popular Vote was introduced by Senate Bill 39 in
the Twenty-Seventh Alaska State Legislature, 2011-2012 - well
before the 2016 election. He stated that a 1968 Gallup Poll
reveal ed that 80 percent of the nation supported abolishing the
El ectoral Coll ege. He urged the conmittee not to consider the
proposed | egislation a partisan effort but to assess whether the
El ectoral College is functioning as it was intended.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL referred to the incident regarding M. Baca.
He asked if an Electoral College nenber could still vote his/her
conscience if in a state that joined the conpact. He suggested
that maybe the Electoral College nenber should be obligated to
vote as the popul ar vote dictat ed.

MR. RACE stated that the proposed |egislation uses the concept
of "bound" Electoral College nenbers to carry out its goal of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 23, 2017



enforcing National Popular Vote. He asserted that through the
proposed legislation, the idea of bound Electoral College
menbers would be tested. He stated that if conmmttee nenbers
believe that El ectoral College nenbers should not be bound, they
shoul d support HB 175, because it would test this practice. He
menti oned that Electoral College nenbers are given the nane of
only one candi date; a nenber could cross that nane out and vote
hi s/ her conscience as M. Baca did. M. Race said that M. Baca
may be fined or inprisoned because there are laws in place that
obligate Electoral College nenbers to follow the will of the
voters in a state. He stated that through National Popular
Vote, the Electoral College nmenber would be obligated to vote
for the winner of the popular vote. He stated that the question
is whether a state can "bind" an elector. He opined that if a
state cannot bind an elector, that is a win; if it can bind an
elector, then it can bind that elector to vote for the popul ar
vot e.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL stated that if you cannot bind an elector,
then the conpact is worthless. He said that the conpact is
based on the electors being obliged to vote for the w nner of
t he popul ar vote.

MR. RACE responded that currently a state can bind its el ectors.
He suggested that soneone opposing the National Popular Vote

novenment would nost |ikely contest it based on the idea that
el ectors cannot be obligated to vote a certain way. [ f that
attack were successful, it would "blow up”" the idea of binding
El ectoral College nenbers. M. Race opined that binding

El ectoral College nenbers is a travesty. He cited the writings
of Alexander Hamlton in The Federalist Papers, which states
that the Electoral College was created to protect the country
from electing a populist who is skilled in the low arts of
popul ar intrigue. He relayed that the Founding Fathers were
terrified when enbarking on the experinment [of denbcracy]; it
gave nuch power to the people. He said the Founding Fathers
wanted a |ayer of protection. He attested that the Electoral
Col | ege nenbers were to consider the vote of the people, ensure
the selection was acceptable, and cast their votes accordingly.
The electors acted as a failsafe in case a really "bad"
candi date won t he popul ar vote.

5:03:29 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP agreed that currently the electors are

bound, but they are bound to vote according to the results of
the popular vote in a state. He asked if M. Race felt it was

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 23, 2017



appropriate that electors be bound according to the results of
t he popular vote nationally, regardless of how the people of the
state vote.

MR. RACE responded that Representative Knopp is asking a
fundanental questi on: Do you want to have every citizen vote
for the President, or do you want a small collection of state
representatives to vote for the President?

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP suggested that Alaskans would not be
represented if the electors voted for a different candidate than
chosen by the mpjority of Al askan voters. He stated that he
does not disagree with the statenment made about the popul ar
vote, but he believes that the National Popular Vote conpact
woul d not support representation.

REPRESENTATIVE BIRCH cited Article 1, Section 10, of the U S
Constitution, which read as follows [original punct uati on
provi ded] : "No State shall, wthout the Consent of Congress,
lay any Duty of Tonnage, keep Troops, or Ships of War in tine of
Peace, enter into any Agreenent or Conpact w th another State,
or with a foreign Power, or engage in War, unless actually
i nvaded, or in such immnent Danger as will not admt of delay."
He stated that he did not believe that casting Alaska's
El ectoral College votes for the candidate who won the national
popul ar vote, regardless of who won Al aska's popular vote, was
an i nprovenent.

MR. RACE responded that the fundanmental question is: Do you
want every vote to count in the election for President, or do
you want this "funky" Electoral College system to be the vote
that is used to determ ne the President? He added that nost
Al askan voters are independent, non-partisan voters. He asked,
"Who votes for the Electoral College, if an independent or non-
partisan is ... elected president in Al aska? How does that work
under your systen®"

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH responded that the nunber of electoral
votes is prescribed by the U S Constitution as are the nunber
of elected representatives a state has in Congress. He conceded
that representation is disproportionate; Alaska gets way nore
votes [per population] than other states. He offered that this
system is in the State of Al aska's collective interest, and
votes are cast as w nner-takes-all.

MR. RACE offered that if a non-partisan candidate won Al aska's
votes, he does not know who would cast the Electoral College

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 23, 2017



votes on behalf of the non-partisan candi date. He asked, "How
does the El ectoral College serve the majority of Al aska voters?"

5:07:59 PM

MARGO WARING testified that she believes in denocracy and that
the country has been noving toward increased denocracy. She
cited passage of the 19th Anmendnent to the Constitution on
wonen's suffrage as an exanple. She nentioned that in 1963,
Senators were elected by |Iegislatures. In 1964, the U.S.

Suprene Court ruled in Reynolds v. Sins to have one person, one
vote. She opined that is what is needed to elect a President -
one person, one vote. She maintained that the only way to
achieve that is to count every vote and to have every vote count
equal | y.

M5. WARING stated that great discrepancies between the popul ar
vote and the Electoral College vote - as has been experienced by
the country in five elections - only engenders questions about
"the legitimcy of our President and the legitimcy of our
denocracy, and distrust for governnent.

CHAIR KREI SS-TOWINS expressed his belief that the direct
el ection of U S. Senators canme about through the 17th Anmendnent
to the U S. Constitution in the early 1700s.

M5. WARI NG stated her understanding that in the Reynolds v. Sins
ruling of 1964, the U S. Suprenme Court nmade the statenent that
the election of U S. Senators had to be by direct popular vote.

5:10: 57 PM

JUDY ANDREE, League of Wnen Voters (LW) of Alaska, testified
that the League of Wnen Voters of the United States, under
which state |eagues preside, supports the use of the popular
vote in the election of the President and the Vice-President.
She maintained that the |eague nade the decision to support it
in 1970 after two years of studying the pros and the cons of the
i ssue. She stated that two of the "msaligned" elections
mentioned by M. Waring occurred in the last eight elections.
She added that there is a trend toward "non-|andslide" election
results and suggested that there will be nore elections in the
future in which the popular vote does not match the Electora
Col | ege vote. She reiterated that such results bring to
gquestion the legitinmacy of the person el ected. She nentioned
that in the last election, 48.8 percent of the votes in Al aska
stopped at the state line and "no Ilonger existed for any

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 23, 2017



nmeani ngf ul purpose. " She concluded that all the [state] LWs
encour age passage of HB 175.

5:14:14 PM

BEN MJUSE testified that he supports a systemin which all votes
count equally. He maintained that American denbcracy has been
changing over the years; the Electoral College is not what is
was in 1790 and doesn't function the way it was anticipated by
M. Hamlton. He nentioned that there have been nany other
changes in the direction of nore denocracy: there are no
property qualifications for being eligible to vote; wonmen can
vote; and there are nore elaborate primary systenms with nore

i ndi vidual input for selection of candidates. He reiterated
that earlier in the country's history, US. Senators were
elected by state legislators and not by popular vote. He
asserted that he does not see a strong benefit for Al aska, as a
smal| state, under the existing Electoral College. Al aska has
three out of a total of 535 electoral votes, or one-half of one
percent. He suggested that the small states together constitute
about eight percent of the Electoral College votes, and those
small states differ from each other greatly in interests,

i ndustry, and politics.
5:17: 06 PM

ALAN DAVIS testified that currently his vote does not count
because when two-thirds of the population vote Republican, his
vote as a Denocrat is disregarded by the Electoral College. He
mai ntained that the Electoral College disenfranchises him and
it disenfranchised the majority of the voters in the country in

the last election. He expressed his belief that it is wong.
He asserted that a constitutional anendnent to the U S
Constitution will not occur because the two major political

parties have a vested interest in keeping the current system
they only nust concentrate on a small nunber of states rather
than conducting a true nationw de canpaign. He stated that
Al aska has the indignity of the election being called before its
el ection polls are closed. He maintained that National Popul ar
Vote would allow his vote to be tallied and to influence the
el ection, which currently does not occur.

5:19: 19 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JCOHNSON stated that the United States has the

st eadi est, |longest standing political systemin the world. She
asked why M. Davis would want to destabilize that system

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- March 23, 2017



MR, DAVIS responded that it 1is already destabilized; the
Electoral College overrode the popular vote 1in the |ast
el ecti on. He maintained that "fixing" that problem is not
destabilizing the country. He asserted that the current system
is destabilizing the country, encouraging people not to vote
because they know their vote does not count.

5:20: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked how the proposed Ilegislation fixes
the problem He said that wunder National Popular Vote, M.
Davis's vote would count if he votes in the magjority. He asked,
"If you do not vote in the majority, how does your vote count?"

MR. DAVIS responded that his vote would be part of the tally of
votes. He stated that currently it is not.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP suggested that M. Davis's vote is counted
in the state vote.

MR. DAVIS answered, "I don't care about the state election.
W're tal king about a national election. My vote goes into a
particul ar category in the national vote."

5:21: 02 PM

KARLA HART testified that Al aska has only three electoral votes
regardl ess of the voter participation. She suggested that under
National Popular Vote, Alaska's vote would be nore significant
in a close election and Al askans would feel that their votes
meant nore; therefore, there would be a positive effect on a
"get out the vote" canpaign.

5:22:57 PM

WLLI AM DEATON testified that he opposes HB 175 because he
believes the Electoral College works and people who testified
that their votes don't count are m sinforned about how it works.
He stated that the popular vote in Al aska determ nes the
el ectors. He added that people who testify that their votes do
not count are doing so because they are Denocrats. He stated
that those people could nove to a Denocratic state if they want
their votes to go to a Denocrat but that their votes still go to
a Denocrat even in Al aska. He maintained that under National
Popul ar Vote, Al aska's electors may have to vote differently
from Al aska's popul ar vote. He opined that this is wong. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 23, 2017



asserted that HB 175 is a very bad bill, and he urged the
commttee not to vote it out of conmttee.

5:25:14 PM

CHAIR KREI SS-TOWI NS, after ascertaining that there was no one
el se who wished to testify, closed public testinony on HB 175.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWI NS announced that HB 175 woul d be hel d over.

HB 143- NAM NG THE DANI EL R. FAUSKE BUI LDI NG

5:25:26 PM

CHAI R KREIl SS- TOMKI NS announced that the final order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 143, "An Act nam ng the Daniel R Fauske
Bui I di ng. "

5:25:48 PM

REPRESENTATIVE M KE  CHENAULT, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
presented HB 143, as prinme sponsor. He paraphrased from the
sponsor statement, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

| am pleased to offer House Bill 143 in honoring Dan
Fauske by naming the AHFC Building at 4300 Boniface
Par kway, the Daniel R Fauske Buil ding.

Dan Fauske served as the head of the Al aska Housing
Fi nance Corporation (AHFC) for 18 years, nmanaging
assets of $4.8 billion. During his tenure, AHFC
started its Watherization and Hone Energy Rebate
Program which had provided weatherization upgrades
for renters and honmeowners and rebates for energy
i nprovenents to honmeowners for nearly 16,000 hones by
the end of 2010. AHFC also played key roles in
providing affordable housing statewide, nmaking it
possible for Alaskans to pursue the dream of hone
ownership. Under his |eadership, AHFC continued its
series of annual contributions to the State of Al aska,
which totaled $1.9 billion by the end of 2010.

In May 2010, while serving as CEO and Executive
Director of the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation
(AHFC), Fauske was selected by the Al aska Legislature
to lead a joint devel opnent team charged wi th studying

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- March 23, 2017



t he feasibility of desi gni ng, fi nanci ng and
constructing an in-state natural gas pipeline capable
of delivering North Slope gas to communities wthin
Alaska. Initially, the Alaska Gasline Devel opnent
Corporation (AGDC) was created as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of AHFC to manage the devel opnent of the
Al aska Stand Al one Pipeline (ASAP) plan. In 2013, the
Legislature re-established AGDC as an independent
corporation of the State and appropriated $355 mllion
towards the project. Fauske continued in a dual
capacity, l|eading both Corporations, until August 2013
when he resigned from AHFC to focus exclusively on
AGDC and gasline work.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT commented that M. Fauske had a |ong
history with the state, both at the state |evel and the |ocal
| evel ; he served as chief financial officer (CFO for the North
Sl ope Borough (NSB) and in many other roles. He nmaintained that
M. Fauske was a gentleman; he acconplished all with which he
was tasked by the state and the |egislature; and he was a great
statesman and a friend.

5:29:33 PM
CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS opened public testinony on HB 143.
5:29:47 PM

JERRY LAVINE testified that he opposes HB 143. He expressed his
gratitude for M. Fauske's service to the State of Alaska while
wor ki ng for AHFC He nentioned M. Fauske's contributions to
AHFC in helping to "grow AHFC s bottom line and paying
di vidends back to the State of Al aska. He stated that he did
not know M. Fauske nor has he used any AHFC services. He said
he opposes HB 143 because he believes that under the current
fiscal situation, the Thirtieth Alaska State Legislature should
be spending its Ilimted time working on fiscal issues, not
renam ng public buil dings.

MR. LAVI NE asked, "What does it cost to change the nanme of a
public buildi ng?" He nmentioned that the fiscal note from the
Departnent of Adm nistration (DOA) indicates a zero-fiscal note,
but he suggested there is a cost for the change: new signs; new
nane plates; changes to online directories; changes to printed
directories, and public records changes. He maintained that HB
143 is not in the best interest of Alaska citizens.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 32- March 23, 2017



MR. LAVINE stated, "Wth all due respect to M. Fauske, nost
peopl e don't know who Daniel is." He suggested that M. Fauske
is known by people in the financial markets and the executive
and | egislative branches of government, but the general public
woul d not recognize his name. He asserted that the nanme change
may create confusion for the public trying to locate the AHFC
bui | di ng i n Anchor age.

MR. LAVINE opined that with 34 bills and 12 resolutions in the
House State Affairs Standing Comrmittee as of today, HB 143 is a
waste of legislative time, and he encouraged the comittee
nmenbers to table the proposed |egislation or vote against it.
He conceded that evidence suggests that M. Fauske did excellent
work at AHFC, but he offered that the commttee consider a
| egislative citation to honor M. Fauske's work.

5:32:30 PM

JOHN BITTNEY testified that he supports HB 143. He stated that
he represented AHFC in the capitol for seven years of his 31
years [as a |obbyist]. He nentioned that the proposed
| egislation is inportant because AHFC is considered one of the
prem er housing authorities in the nation - the nost
sophisticated, the nost financially strong, and the best
oper at ed. He maintained that a large part of that success is
due to the action of the Seventeenth Al aska State Legislature in
conmbi ning many of the housing functions of the state under one
organi zation and the hire of M. Fauske in the late '90s. He
relayed that M. Fauske was able to overconme political barriers
to put all the housing functions under AHFC, it was no snall
feat; and the practice has continued to this day. He maintained
that AHFC is an organi zation for which the state can be proud.

5:34: 26 PM

CHAI R KREI SS-TOWKI NS, after ascertaining that there was no one
el se who wished to testify, closed public testinony on HB 143.

5:34: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH stated that he is a co-sponsor of HB 143.
He asserted that the proposed |egislation would appropriately
recogni ze M. Fauske's distinguished service to the people of
the State of Al aska.

5:35: 00 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 23, 2017



REPRESENTATIVE Birch noved to report HB 143 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS obj ected for purpose of discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said that she supports HB 143. She
opined that the proposed legislation is appropriate and takes
advant age of a good opportunity.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP conpl enented the commttee packet provided
by the sponsor of HB 143 and stated that he supports noving HB
143 out of comm ttee.

CHAI R KREI SS-TOWINS noted that AHFC is a nodel for statew de
housing authorities, and he said namng the building is
appropriate and consistent with what the |l egislature has done in
t he past.

CHAIR KREI SS-TOWI NS renoved his objection. There being no
further objection, HB 143 was reported from the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee.

5:37:41 PM

The committee took an at-ease from5:37 p.m to 5:39 p.m

5:39:10 PM

CHAIR KREISS-TOWINS reiterated that there being no objection
HB 143 was reported from the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee.

5:39:48 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from5:39 p.m to 5:42 p. m

5:42:11 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWI NS noted that the conmittee would be bringing
HB 1 back to correct an oversight.

5:43:39 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- March 23, 2017



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 5:44
p. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- March 23, 2017



